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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

vms/o/voFECO/vomcJi hoi/s/ng srABii/ry

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603*271-9474 1-800-SS2-334S Ext 9474

Fix: 603-271-4230 TOO Accesi: I-800-73S-2964 www.dhlu.Qh.gov

/  September 21, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic
and Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with the vendor listed in bold below for the ongoing provision of permanent housing and
supportive services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option
by extending the completion date from October 31, 2020, to October 31, 2021, and by
Increasing the total price limitation by $107,192 from $281,462 to $388,654, effective
November 1, 2020, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on August 14.
2019, item #9.

Vendor Name Vendor Code
Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

FIT/NHNH, Inc..
Manchester, NH

157730-8001 Manchester $71,374 $0 $71,374

FIJyNHNH. Inc.,
Manchester, NH

157730-8001
Merrlmack

County
$105,327 $0 $105,327

FIT/NHNH, Inc.,
Manchester,

NH

157730-8001
Stratford

County
$104,761 $107,192 $211,953

Total; $281,462 $107,192 $388,654

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with .the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Tht Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS A HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $208,314 $0 $208,314

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $73,148 $71,462 $144,610

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $35,730 $35,730

Total $281,462 $107,192 $388,654

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole
source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendment to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing permanent housing programs
that deliver rental and leasing assistance; service access; and supportive services to
individuals and families who are expen'encing homelessness.

The programs serve individuals and families experiencing homelessness who
would othenwise likely be left in unsafe situations \vithout permanent housing.
Approximately thirty-eight (38) individuals will be served from November 1, 2020, to
October 31. 2021.

Using the Housing First model, the Contractors develop Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans and facilitate each participant's movement into sustained permanent
housing. Additionally, the Contractors work to maximize each participant's ability to live
more independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following;

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information
and income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

• Timely and accurate data entered by the Contractors into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, which is the
primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section
2., Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement
for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of senrices,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years
available.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will
be fewer permanent housing options and supportive services available, leaving
vulnerable individuals and families, in unsafe and deadly situations, without a safety net.
Additionally, if data is not collected as required by the contracts, the Department will be
out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding
for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Manchester and Merrimack and Stafford Counties.

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #NH0053L1T001909

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing Contract

This 1®' Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH, Inc., (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 122 Market Street, Manchester,
NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019, (Item #9). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, Paragraph 2.1., the Contract may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

October 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$211,953.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2.,
paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers NH0053L1T001808 (November 1, 2019 through October 31, 2020); ,
NH0053L1T001909 (November 1, 2020 - October 31, 2021)

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.7.2, to read:

1.2.7.2. November 1, 2020 - October 31, 2021, not to exceed $107,192

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., Subsection 1.2.,
Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description

November 1,

2019 through
October 31,

November 1,

2020 through
October 31,

Total

Cumulative

Amount

2020 2021

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $21,264 $21,264 $42,528

1.2.8.2. Operating Costs: $81,042 $83,473 $164,515

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2,455 $2,455 $4,910

1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount: $104,761 $107,192 $211,953

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%): $26,190 $27,412 $53,602

6. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #1 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incor
reference herein.

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A01

Amendment #1

Page 1 of 3

Contractor initials

Date

m)

•^ed by

9/28/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

I

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/29/2020

Date

DocuSlgnMl by:

Santamel lo

Title: Di rector

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

9/28/2020

Date

—OocuSlgncd by:

Name:^^'"'® Devlin
Title: president & CEO

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A01

Amendment #1

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■OocuSlgmd by;

9/29/2020

D^ti
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Amendment#!

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A01 Page 3 of 3
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FITMHNH: Dover Permanent Housing

|CoC Funds - NH0053L1T001909

Exhibit B-2, Amendment 111 Budget Sheet

rasa SR?aiEa
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services 14.176 * • 14,170 S •

Operating 55.649 55.649 $ •

AdminisUatjon 1.637 S - 1.637 % •

25% Required Match

TOTAL HUD FUNOS/BAI-ANCE

18.275 18.275 5 •

89,737 18,275 71.462 $ -

•OOiKQ, ssyaiEB
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services 7,088 $ - 7.088 S -

Operating 27.824 27.824

Administration 816 $ - 818

25% Required Match

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

9.137 9,137

44,887 9,137 $ • 35,730 $ -

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services 21.284 21,264 8 -

Operating 83.473 83,473 8 -

Administration 2,455 2,455 8 •

25% Required Match

TOTAL HUO PUNOS/BALANCe
27.412 27.412

134,604 27,412 107,192 8 •

Total W/0 Match 107,192

FIT/NHNH, inc. Dover Permanent Housing

$$-202D-BHS-04-PERMA-ll-A01

Contractor initials

Page 1 of 1 Date
9/28/2020
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATB

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stole of Ihe Slate of Now Hampshire, do hereby certify that F1T/NHNH> JNC Is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Conwraiion reBlKcrcd to transact business in New HBrapshlrc on May 13,1994.1 further ccnily that all fees
and documents required by the Socmtary of State's office have been received and is in good alindlng as far as this office is
conceriKx].

Business ID; 207982

Certificats Number 0004885897

la.

*0

A
S

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and causo to be affixed

tho Seal of tho Slate of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretory of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Scott Ellison , hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv^fflcei^f FIT/NHNH. Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 24 2020 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Maria Devlin. Presldent/CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of FIT/NHNH. Inc. to enter Into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modificatjons thereto, which
may In his/her Judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and rennalns In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltlon(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that ̂ ere are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation In coptracts-wit() of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_September 24, 2020
fnaffl^e of Elected Officer

Name: Scott Ellison,
Title: Board of Director, Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-4ft4E-ADC4-C5BlC847F270

/XCORO'
FAMIlNT-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DBEAUDQIN

DATl(MWOOrfYYY)

9/3/2020
"mis CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTinCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(3) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTinCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If IhB cortlflcale holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSUf^, tho polley/ies) must havs ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, eubject to tho tarms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rfahta to (he certiflc&to holder In lieu of such ondorsemontfs).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Moalll & Everett Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

wtifo.Exo: (603) 225-6611 rAftNefcfWS) 226-7935

WSURERfS) APfORORO COVBRAOfi

K»uneHA:PhlladelDhia Insurance Comoanv 23B60
MSUREO

Famlllos In Transition, Inc.
122 Market St
Manchester, NH 03101

MfHIRPR R: OrvilU Btato HMttlt Car* * Nuawn Swwtou SMI kiaund OrMp

WSUREHC:

MURPRO:

WSURERB:

NSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW H«iVE8EB>J ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWTHSTANDINO ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITIGN OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER OOCUMEmWITH RESPECTTO WMOHTWS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS ANDCONDmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS icrwia,

TYPe OP NSURA.YCe

COMMCROAL OeNCRAL UAOUTY

I aAlMS-MAOEE

OeWL AOOHEOATY UMfT Ai

POUCYrxlS®^ IX
PER-

LOC

StEBL

AUTOMOBIU! UASIUTY

AMY AUTO

)
ONLY

ONLY

OWNCD
AUT06<

UHBRCIXAUAS

excns UAB

eCfCOULEO
AUTOS

OCCUR

ClAjUS4(A0E

oeo X retemhon s ^ 9,000
WORXEM COAMNSATION
AND eVPLOYERT UAOIUTY

' PROPRlGTOA^ARINER/EXECUTrVE
I excLuoeoT

eryln a
If Ml, dMCife* undir
DfeaAHIPTION OFOPIRAnONSbNaw

POLICY NUMBER l|ZZSP[323IKSI!H133ai

PHPK20778fl5

PHPK2077e96

PHUB705694

HCHS20200D00187

1/1/2020

1/1/2020

1/1/2020

2/1/2020

1/1/2021

1/1/2021

1/1/2021

2/1/2021

EACH OCCUHRENCe

_ TO RENTEDpwfc* ttiirftml

MEP EAPIAnvBfwPNMOi

PERSONAL t AOV IN JURY

QEMERALAOOREOATE

PROOLfCTa • COMPXy AOC

COUBtNEO BINOLE UMIT
.iEi.aMMRU]

OGOCY INJURY IPit ofiom

60DQ.Y INJURY IPf xgYdti^l

EACH OCCURRENCE

lg?&UTP : OTH-

ER

CO. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L DISEAftE . EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE.POUCYUUrr

1,000,000

1,000,000

20,000

1,000,000

9,000,000

3,000,000

1,000.000

6,000,000

6,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS fVEHKUES (ACORO 111. AddUoMl Rmrlu SalwAdt. nuy b« ittaehtd ■ men ipeee to

NH 0HH8

129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OEBCRBED POUOES BE CANCEaEO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WtU BE DELIVERED M
ACCORDANCE WTTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZeO REPRSSENTATIVe

ACORD 26 (2016/03)

Tho ACORO name and logo are reglstored marks of ACORD
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Families
in Transition

A  ̂iWin^ HofS- SOUF i;iTCHEN ' FOOD mm • HOMELEOS SHELtiRS

Our Mission

The mission of FIT/NHNH is to provide hunger relief,
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing, and
supportive services to individuals and families who are
homeless or in need, enabling them to gain self-
sufficiency and respect.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Ddcennber 31, 2019

(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

With Independent Auditor's Report
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FIT/NHNH, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2019 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design.
Implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal conUol relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly. In all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2019, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then'ended In
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Maine • Now Hampshire • MassachusoUs • Connocdcut • West Virginia ■ Arizona

borrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2018 consolidated financial statements and, In our
report dated March 18. 2019, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements, in our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2018 Is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary Information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individuai entities, and Is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures. Including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Changes in Accounting Principles

As discussed In Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2019 the Organization adopted new
accounting guidance. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-18. Restricted Cash, and FASB ASU No. 2018-08. Clarifying the Scope of the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Our opinion Is not modified
with respect to these matters.

hlcyuiC-f l

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 31,2020
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Resen/e cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity
Asset held for sale

Property and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets

Total assets

' UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current llabliitles

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related entity
Line of credit

Other current liabiiities

Total current (iabllities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions - controlling Interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolllng interest

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2019 2018

i  2,622,454 $ 1,598,033
67,501 52,211
589,218 786,343
65,512 80.007

- 36,613
69.367 48.110

3,304,052 2,600,317

428,390 336,578
1,012,597 718,154
1,123,413 1,336,584

- 1,000 1,000
- 429.779

32,788,053 28.530,819
155,686 3,605,450
60.638 198473

•  38.893.829 S 37.757.154

317,739 $ '  1,116,180
167,557 249,907
372,038 348,095

- 35.613
- 145.000

59.671 82.475

917,005 1,977.270

16.610.670 13.604.017

16.527.675 15.581.287

19,284,224 17,778.833
2.602.333 3.209.398

21,886,557 20,988,231

479.597 1.187.636

22.366.154 22.175.867

38.893.829 $ 37.757,154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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PIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

WMimiOamKtitMoM M«nM Oenor fUtWSaia reulWIheylOgmf
•CtrWChglfltttll .WonMnlwit»«tni«raM BtfUk&tOI

ftavtniM M Mppol
F*dwil. UM MW sraM lUppM
RoM hMffl*, rM M vkomM*
TMl Uvri uiM
PwMo iMFpaft
Tm w»dl r«v»rKi«
SptAI mMi
OtvMopwlMi
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4C5B1C847F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

Program Activities

Housing Thrift Store Fundralsina

Salaries and benefits >

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payrod taxes

Total salaries and

benefits

Other expenses
Advertising
Application and permit fees
Bad debts

Bank charges
Condominium association fees

Consuitanls

Depredation
Events

Food

General insurance

Grant expense
Interest expense
Management fees
Meals and entertainment

Membership dues
Merger expenses
Office supplies
Partldpant expenses
Postage
Printing
Professional fees

Rental subsidies

Repairs and maintenance
Shelter expense
Staff development
Taxes

Technology support
Telephone
Travel

Utilities

VISTA program
Workers' compensation

Total expenses

$ 4,042,102
430,575

299.750

4.772.507

21,316

522

13,402
7,902
12,072

37,115
1,024.398

1,789

124,060
146.654

218,845
6,724

3,498
6,728

110,014

176,001
139,602
12,567
35,759

158,731
332,635

576,605

34.768

365,503
169,707
111,116
37,152

534.278
208,687
123.512

S 9.524.438

248,403 $ 400,818
11,720 41,683
19.882 30.036

280,013

29,076

7,466

2.714
10,304

385

2,331

660

8,895

8

982

4,000

26,813

200

1,709

525

2,618

2,326
22,308

14.630

472,737

2,441
52

872

4.168
131,224
145.581

15.214

1,615

466

757

21.594

1,493
4,311
12,014

73.992

4,376

20,752

9,421
4,881

60,222

12.205

Management
and General

803,738 $ 6,295,139
62,042 646.226
44.292 393.960

2018

Total

4.882.814
517.504
353.569

710,070 6,235,327 5.553,907

3,662

4,341

5.554

5.377

73,404

11,245

538

783

1,136
36,672
32,098

2.182
6,309

37.895

43,911

6,538

30,914
13.981
7,299

26,851

17-952

56,494
4,915
13,402
21,874
12,072
49,374

1,239,330
147,765
124,060
175,444

221,668
6,724

4,747

8,621
146,686
238,588
139,602
16,240
47,361
212,640
332.636
721,321

45,882

367,212
221,898
137,138
51,658

643,659
208,887
168.299

59.032
1,620

28.100
20,865

29,481
1,111,930
167,049

155,880
59,149

229,713
6.622

6,122

15,989
137,747
370,155
117,718

13,365

40.717
169,823
332,270
462,762
168.691
39,034

315.920
244,811
112.921
54.172

613.495
320,859
148.356

$ 1.078.712 $12.021.601

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 10; A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4-C5B1C847F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARJES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Grants and contributions for capital projects
Effect of consolidation of affiliate, net of cash held by consolidated affiliate

of $326,551
Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
(Increase) decrease In:

Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Other assets

(Decrease) increase (n:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from Investing ectivhies
Repayments from (advances to) related parties
Proceeds from sale of Investments

Investment In development In process
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Acquisition of property end equipment

Net cash used by Investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants and contributions for capital projects
Net (repayments on) borrowings from line of credit
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payment of financing costs
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by finandng activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year

Breakdown of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents
Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties

Supplemental disclosure

Property and equipment transferred from development in process
interest paid

mi 2Qia

190,287 $ 3.149,914

1,253,461 1.125,127
• (560,790)

- (3,104,400)
(131,267) (131,267)
(252,431) 168,848
(210,190) 10,115

(15,290) 42.130
197,125 (334,679)
14,496 (39,301)

106,678 (119.810)

(82,350) (21,258)
23,943 84,806

(35,613) 35,613
f22.804\ 32.971

1.035.944 338.019

35,613 (35,613)
465,602 275,024
(623,132) (1,515,419)
846,634

f1.730.333i (2.476.109)

(905.616) (3.752.117)

580,790
(145,000) 145,000
2,127,975 3,507,201
(31,409) -

(771.218) (223,P19)

1.180.348 3.989.972

1,310,676 575,874

2.6S2.76S 2.078.891

3.963.441 S 2.652.765

$  2,522,454
428,390

1.012.597

$  3.963.441

$  1,598.033
336.578
718.1S4

$  2.652.765

<  3.972.896 S 2.222.138
t  221.658 $ .229.71:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4-C5B1CW7F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31. 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Organization

In May 1994, Families in Transition, Inc. was incorporated as a New Hampshire nonprofit to provide
housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who are homeless or at risk of
becoming homeless in certain areas of southern New Hampshire.

Effective January 1. 2018, Families In Transition, Inc. merged with New Horizons for New Hampshire,
Inc. (NHNH) to form FIT/NHNH, Inc. (FIT/NHNH or the Organization). As a result of the merger,
FIT/NHNH created an iritegrated system of care that provides an increased supply of affordable
housing for those most in need, sustains positive outcomes through the Incorporation of evidence
based practices proven to meet Identified needs and goals, identifies areas for systemic and
programmatic Improvements through the use of consistent and accurate data to regularly measure
success, and provide an integrated system of care to prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly
rehouse those who become homeless, including both the chronically homeless and families with '
children. The merger resulted in a contribution of net assets in 2018 as follows: j

I

Cash and cash equivalents $ 326,551 i
Other current assets 631438 I
Cash surrender value of life insurance 33,676 j
Investments 1,78o!456 1
Property and equipment, net 1,396,197 i
Accounts payable and accrued payroll ' (95|95d)
Notes payable (73*417^

Fair value of net assets acquired $ 3.430.951

The fair value of the Identifiable assets exceeded the fair value of the liabilities assumed; as a result, a
contribution was recognized. There was no consideration transferred from NHNH.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street In Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing
facilities are owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization, or one of
its subsidiaries, is the sole general partner. These lirhited partnerships Include Bicentennial Families
Concord Limited Partnership (Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New
Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street In
Manchester. New Hampshire; and Family Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on
South Beech Street in Manchester, New Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited
Partnerships).

During 2019, Bicentennial reached the end of its initial 15-year low-income housing tax credit
compliance period. Effective September 20, 2019, New Hampshire Housing Equity Fund 2002 Limited
Partnership and JPMorgan Chase, the limited partners, and Bicentennial Families Concord, Inc., the
general partner, dissolved Bicentennial. As a result, the non-controlling interest was eliminated and the
assets and liabilities of Bicentennial were transferred to the general partner. The general partner's
parent. FIT/NHNH, then caused the assets to be contributed to, and the liabilities assumed by. Housing
Benefits, Inc. (Housing Benefits), a subsidiary of FIT/NHNH.
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OocuSign Envelope ID; A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4.C5B1C847F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

In 2008, the Organization created Housing Benefits, a Community Development Housing Organization
to identify and develop new housing units and refurbish existing units to meet the persistent need of
combating homelessness. Completed housing units are located on School & Third Street Lowell
Street. Belmont Street. Market Street (Millyard I and Millyard II). Spruce Street and Hayward Street In
Manchester. New Hampshire as well as additional housing facilities located on Central Avenue' in
Dover, New Hampshire (Dover). Lehner Street in Wotfeboro. New Hampshire (Hope House) and at
Bicentennial Square In Concord, New Hampshire (Bicentennial).

On April 12, 2019, HB-AH, LLC (HB-AH) was legally formed as a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire which Is treated as a disregarded entity for federal
income tax purposes. HB-AH's purpose Is to acquire, own, rent, operate and manage 23 residential
apartments located In Manchester, New Hampshire. HB-AH is to operate exclusively to further the
charitable purpose of Housing Benefits, HB-AH's sole member.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc (MEH) a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire area. MEH Is the only family shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporation
A De^mber 31. 2019, Outfitters operated an independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization. During 2018
management made the decision to close a Concord, New Hampshire thrift store location.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End
Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for
homelessness through research, education and advocacy."

On May 25, 2018, the Organization organized Wilson Street Condominium Association (the
Association). The Association was established for the purpose of maintaining and preserving a five unit
premise located on Wilson Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The Organization is the maioritv
owner of the Association. ^ '

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Second Street Family Mill Inc
(Family Mil!), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectiveiy referred to as the General
Partners), all of which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent
the .01% sole general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Family Mill Is a general partner of
Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows

-8-



DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4-C581C847F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Newly Adopted Accounting Principle and Reclasslficatlons

in 2019, the Organization adopted FInanciai Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash. This ASU requires an entity to
present restricted cash with cash on the statement of cash flows. The impact of adoption on the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2018 is a decrease in cash
used by Investing activities of $40,338, and an increase in cash and restricted cash, beginning of
the year of $1,014,394.

in July 2018, FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting (Suidance
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, to clarify and Improve the accounting
guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The amendments In this ASU assist
entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions
(nonreciprocai transactions) within the scope of FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
Topic No. 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other
accounting guidance, and (2) distinguishing between conditional contributions and unconditional
contributions. This ASU was adopted by the Organization for the year ended December 31, 2019.
Adoption of the ASU did not have a material impact on the Organization's financial reporting!

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation, the financial statements of the Limited Partnerships are
required to be consolidated with the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited
partners' ownership Interest Is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as
noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements Include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, Housing Beriefits, HB-AH, MEN, Outfitters. NHCEH, the Association, and the
General Partners. All significant Inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Comparative information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classification. Such Information does not Include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generaliy accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2018 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized Information
was derived.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; A5162D29-97A8-484e-ADC4-C5BlC847F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and iiabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to its consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classification:

Net assets without donor restrictions; Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net.
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for genera! use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that increases net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the vear of
the gift.

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-4e4E-ADC4-C5B1C847F270

FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an Initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally Insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential
risk at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes ft Is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Reserves are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for operating
costs, but restricted to particular uses Including operating and replacement reserves for rental
properties as well as certain other social services and programs.

Propertv and Eouipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or. If donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation Is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 5 to 30 years. Assets not in service are
not depreciated.

Rental Income

Rental revenue is recognized pro rata over each tenant's period of occupancy. A contract is
entered Into with a tenant and covers a period of twelve months. All rents are collected at the
beginning of each month and are nonrefundable. A tenant has an option to cancel a lease at any
time with a minimum of 30 days notice, at which time the Organization will prorate the final rent
payment through a tenant's expected move-out dale.

Wheri a contract is entered Into with a tenant, the Organization collects a security deposit. The
security deposits are maintained in a separate cash account and a corresponding liability is
recognized. Upon termination of a tenant's contract, the Organization assesses the condition of
the unit being vacated. If It is determined a unit is vacated in a condition equivalent to when the
tenant occupied the unit, the security deposit is refunded to the tenant. If a unit is determined to be
vacated in a condition less than equivalent to when the tenant occupied the unit, the security
deposit is retained and recognized as revenue.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4-C5B1C847F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been Included In the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 is
approximately $1,030,000 and $780,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that Is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and
benefits, depreciation, amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
direct payroll hours by functional cost centers.

Income Taxes

The Organization Is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) public charily as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the Impact thereof. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not
meet the more-llkely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable lax authority. The
Organization files an informational retum in the United States. This return Is generally subject to
examination by the federal govemment for up to three years.

No. provision for taxes on income is made In the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

The Association Is not exempt from income taxes; however, the Code categorizes any profits
realized by the Association from its member activities as reductions of members' contributions
towards the operation of the condominium property and not as taxable income of the Association
or its members. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made In these consolidated
financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; A5162D29-97A8-4d4E-ADC4-C5BlC847F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

2. Avallabllitv and Llauldltv of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2019, the Organization has working capital, excluding current assets with
donor restrictions of $454,597, of $1,932,450 and average days (based on normal expenditures)
cash and cash equivalents on hand of 85.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on mortgage notes payable, and capital
acquisitions not funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows:

2019 2018

$ 2,622,454 $ 1,598.033
67,601 52,211

589,218 786,343
- 35,613

1.123.413 1.338.5B4

4,302,586 3,808,784

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable
Due from related parties
Investments

Total financial assets

Donor-Imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds f479.597l (1.187.636^

Financial assets available at year end for
current use $ 3.822.989 $ 2.621.148

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as described in Note
5.

The Organization has replacement reserves and designated cash reserves for properties as part
of its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) which are only
available when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and designated
cash reserves for properties are not considered available for genera! expenditure within the next
year and are not reflected In the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a
balanced budget while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; A5162D29-97A8-4S4E-ADC4.C5B1C847F270

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

3. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2019 2018

Land $  3,764,378 $ 3,646,598
Land Improvements 650,380 602,000
Buildings and improvements 39,119,498 34,123,494
Furniture and fixtures 920,936 731,590
Equipment 604,426 558,032
Vehicles 361,163 347,711
Construction In progress 850 12.229

45,421,600 40,022,254
Less: accumulated depreciation 12.633.547 11.491.435

Property and equipment, net S  32.788.053 K 28.530.819

At December 31. 2019 and 2018, the Organization held $37,087,574 and $31,959,920,
respectively, of land, land Improvements, and buildings and Improvements for the purpose of
leasing to Individuals. Accumulated depreciation on the land improvements, buildings and building
improvements at December 31. 2019 and 2018 was $9,284,428 and $8,344,904, respectively.

4. Development In Process

At December 31, 2019, development in process consisted of various projects in process related to
all of the properties ovmed by the Organization. As December 31, 2018, development In process
consisted of costs related to the following:

Famllv Willows Recoverv Housing Program

In response to the rising rates of opiold and other substance use issues throughout Manchester
New Hampshire and the State of New Hampshire. FIT/NHNH and Housing Benefits established
The Manchester Recovery and Treatment Center (the Facility), a large-scale facility to curb the
tide of substance misuse.

The Facility provides areas for agencies to provide substance use disorder treatments or services
to those at varying stages of recovery. The Facility also includes Housing Benefit's Family Willows
Recovery Housing Program (the Program) on the 2"^ and 3"* floors. This Program provides 19
units of sober recovery housing, and accommodates approximately 40-50 women and their
children. Residents in the Program have access to case management, continued outpatient
treatment, self-help groups, employment workshops, and social events. Funding for the Facility
was secured from the City of Manchester. NHHFA. Franklin Savings Bank.' the Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and private foundations. Construction was completed and
the Facility was placed into service in 2019.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

6. Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution In Jhe amount of $350,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4% (4.75% at December 31, 2019). As of December 31. 2018, the outstanding
balance was $145,000. There was no outstanding balance as of December 31. 2019.

6. Lonq'Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
2019 2018

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
Including Interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
coiiateraiized by real estate located on Amherst Street.
Manchester. New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable In
full In January 2033. $ ■ 50,142 $ 53.707

A note payable to NHHFA. The note Is nonlnterest bearing and Is
coiiateraiized by real estate located on Amherst Street.
Manchester. New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or In June 2042. 163,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank In monthly payments
of $883, including Interest at 5.00% for' five years. After five
years, the Interest rate adjusts to match the then current
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 5-year, 20-year amortizing
rate plus 2.50% The loan Is coiiateraiized by real estate on
Spruce Street, Manchester. New Hampshire and is due and
payable in full in May 2034. The Organization refinanced this
note in 2019. 104,019 ' 113,185

A mortgage loan payable to TO Bank. N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,359, including Interest at 4.1%. The loan is coiiateraiized by
real estate at Beech Street. Manchester. New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payable In full In November 2023. 48,028 59.226

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan Is
coiiateraiized by real estate on Douglas Street. Manchester.
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full In April
2024. 207,307 217,397
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December 31, 2019
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A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coilateralized by Bicentennial property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include Interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1,2034. 135,156 141,664

A nonlnterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coilateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2034. This is
nonrecourse. 85,018 85,018

A nonlnterest bearing note payable by Housing Benerrts to NHHFA,
coilateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note Is due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is
nonrecourse and Is subordinate to the $85,018 note payable. 336,955 336,955

A nonlnterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to
Merrimack County, coilateralized by Bicentennial property and
various financing instruments. The note is due and payable in
full in May 2033. 260,000 260,000

A nonlnterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coilateralized by Millyard II property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the
property or in May 2031. This loan is nonrecourse. 446,068 449,877

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coilateralized by Millyard II property. Monthly payments of
$1,729 include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The
final installment Is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 207,057 220,274

A note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, coilateralized by Millyard II property and various
financing instruments. A payment of interest shall be made
annually no later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of
the net cash flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt
Coverage Ratio, as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal
payments shall be made no later than August 1 in an amount
that will result in a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid
amounts are due and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This
note is nonrecourse. 226,725 226,725
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund. Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by Mlllyard II property. Payment of principal is due and payable
on December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 260,000 250,000

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families I real estate. The note Is noninterest

bearing and is due and payable In January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to CDFA,
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment Is due and payable on June 15,
2022. 32,773 45,430

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and Is .to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30,2034. 850,000 850.000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TO Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,953
Include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full in November 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH, Inc.
and Family Mill. 415,323 432,921

A promissory, note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal Is due by October 1. 2034.
The note Is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50%' of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,

.  2037. 616,277 543,384

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note Is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and Is nonrecourse. 81,817 90,908
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

A note payable by Family Wiiiows to RBS Citizens Bank,
coiiaterailzed by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,882
include principal and Interest at 4.75%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Big Shady Tree. 261,100 283,103

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coiiaterailzed by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of S2.775 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note is due in February 2021. 40,664 69,285

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
coiiaterailzed by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15. 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039. 617,613 617 613

A mprtgage note payable by Housing Benefrts to NHHFA,
coilateraiized by Beimont Street real estate and personal
property. The norvinterest bearing note requires annual
payments In amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040. 413,735 413,575

A privately-financed mortgage note coiiaterailzed by property
located at South Main Street in Concord. New Hampshire.
Monthly payments of $3,158 include principal and interest at
6.25% per annum. The property was sold and the note was
paid in 2019. . 332 432

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coiiaterailzed by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full In August 2040. 34,628 34,628

A second, nonlnterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
coilateraiized by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced in October 2012 and continue until the
maturity date in June 2041. 160,022 168 022
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December 31, 2019
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A nonlnterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2019 and 2018, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statement of activities. 853,230 984,497

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA.
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
nonlnterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note Is payable in full by
June 2028. 216,148 216,672

A nonlnterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. Annual
payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$5,000 are due annually by October 1. The note is due in full by
Octoberl.2045. 672,808 582,808

A mortgage note payable to TO Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street. Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $2,137 include principal and Interest at 4.35%. The note is
due in full by April 2024. The Organization refinanced this note
'"2019. 386,216 388,731

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $488, including
interest at 4.06%. The loan is due in September 2020 and is

-  collateralized by the related vehicle. 4^237 9 892

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $760, including
interest at 5.374%. The loan is due In November 2020 and Is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 5^989 13 979

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $308, including
interest at 4.75%. The loan is due in October 2023 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 12,930
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A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, coilateraiized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester. New Hampshire. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments In amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable In full by
June 2045. 750,000 750,000

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., coilateraiized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street. Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $1,091 include principal and
Interest at 4.25%. The note Is due In full by January 2040. 177,428 183,916

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, coilateraiized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,270 Include principal and
Interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027. 373,411 382,018

A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
coilateraiized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments Including principal. Interest and escrow of $7,003 are
due over a 30 year period starting September 2018 at 4.90%
Interest. 724,146 770,113

A nonlnterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
coilateraiized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street!
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000. Annual payments In amounts equal to 25% of
surplus cash. The note is due In full by November 1, 2047. 720,000 692,891

Three vehicle loans coilateraiized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit In monthly payments of $392 at 5.90% annual
interest rate. The loan Is due and payable in March 2022. 28,611 40,633

A nonlnterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, coilateraiized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street. 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or, $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2019. The note is due In full by
October 1.2047. 1,458,182 1.133,816
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A noninteresl bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street, 3rd Floor. The note Is funded by the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City
of Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has
a borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are incurred, Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments In the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due in full by December 1, 2047. 531,252 495,225

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA.
collateralized by real estate located in Woifeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The note is
due in full by December 1, 2047. 780,000 780.000

A mortgage note payable, to NHHFA and is collateralized by the
real estate and personal property. The mortgage Is insured by
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development
through the Housing Finance Agency Risk Sharing Program
authorized by Section 542(c) of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1992. Monthly payments of $6,745 are
due for principal and interest at 4.20%. All remaining principal
isdueonMay 1, 2059. 1,658,090

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at Angle's Shelter. If the
renovation project is approved, NHHFA is expected to be the
lead lender on renovations. If the renovation project is not
approved NHHFA will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest
bearing note payable is due at the time of closing on the
construction loan. 41,627 13,879

A noninterest bearing note payable to the City of Manchester
Community Improvement Program through the Affordable
Housing trust Funds, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street. Annual payments of $6,000 are due by
October 1 commencing October 1. 2010. The note was paid off
in 2019. . 6000
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A note payable to CDFA, coilateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2.0% will be
required until December 2021. 28.924 46.767

^  15,985,939 14.760,449

Less current portion 317,739 1,116.180
Less unamortized deferred costs 57.530 40 252

$16.610.670 $13.604.017

Surplus cash for the' purposes of these disclosures Is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.

Principal maturities of the above notes over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2020 $ 317,739
2021 245,311
2022 223,202
2023 544,247
2024 ' 663.538
Thereafter 13.991.902

$15,985.939

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $14,131, vvas
$221,658 and $229,713 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

/
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7. Net Assets

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2019 2018

Investments to be maintained in

perpetuity, income is to support
general operations $ 25.000 $ 25.000

Funds maintained with donor restrictions

temporary in nature;
The Famiiy Place - services 81,933 53,540
Scholarships 8,764 8,264
VISTA program 48,118
Housing programs 37,500 _

Direct care for clients 88,784 95.410
Community Gardens 10,333
Hope House 21.067 131,440
Family Willows Recovery Housing

Program . 264,238
NHNH merger 12,779 345,003
Substance use disorder services 119,760 170,677
NHNH programs 17,344 35,613
Passage of time 66.666

-

Total funds maintained with

donor restrictions temporary in
nature 454.597 1.162.636

Total net assets with donor

restrictions $  479.597 $  1.187.636
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Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2019 2016

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Operating releases

The Family Place - services
Scholarships
VISTA program
Direct care for clients

Community Gardens
Hope House
NHNH merger
Substance use disorder services
NHNH programs

;  26,607 $
• 3.

Capital project releases
Hope House
Family Willows Recovery

Housing Program
NHNH programs

500
48,116 57.325
71,083 84,324
2,000 _

107,176 _

122,810 96,706
374,438 45,324

107 5.746

762.336 292.92.S

- 216.016

264,238 143,796
36.616

299.854 359.812

1.052.190 652.737

8. Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership Is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of lowHncome housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.
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9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. Ail employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at .100% up to 3% of compensation: The
Organization contributed $71,543 and $63,053 during the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

10. NoncontroHina Interest

Noncontrolling Interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows:

Limited Partner Property 2019 2018

New Hampshire Housing
Equity Fund, Inc. Bicentennial $ . $ 105.749

JP Morgan Chase Bicentennial - 213,791
BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 10
Boston Capital Corporate Family Bridge 766,943 970,818
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Capital Midway Family Willows 1.835.370 1.919.Q2Q

$  2.602.333 S 3.209.398

11. Uncertainty

Subsequent to December 31. 2019, local, U.S., and world governments have encouraged self-
Isolation to curtail the spread of the global pandemic, coronavirus disease (COVID-19), by
mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and imposing limitations on travel
and the size and duration of group meetings. Most sectors are experiencing disruption to business
operations and may feel further Impacts related to delayed government reimbursement, volatility in
investment returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented uncertainty
surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and . any
government actions to mitigate them. Accordingly, while management cannot quantify the financial
and other impacts to the Organization as of March 31, 2020, management believes that a material
impact on the Organization's consolidated financial position and results of future operations is
reasonably possible.

12. Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 31, 2020,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion In the consolidated
financial statements.
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Families In Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire

Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Scott W. Ellison, Chair

COOK, UTTLE, ROSENBLATT&MANSON, PUC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Roy Tilsley, Vice Chair

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley, Treasurer

President, CPA, CFP, Bartley Financial Advisor
Board member since 2018

Frank Sagilo, Asst. Treasurer

Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC.

Board member since 2018

Krlstl Scarpone, Secretary

First, Corporate and Foundation Relations

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, At Large

President, Anagnost Companies

Board member since 2018

Heather Whltfleld, At Large

Vice President, Commercial Lending, People's United Bank
Board member since 2018

David Cassldy, Past Co-Chair

Senior Vice President, Eastern Bank

Board member since 2018

Charia Bizios Stevens, Past Co-ChaIr

Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group

McLane Middleton, Professional Association Esquire

Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone,

Sr. Director Employee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration

Board member since 2018

Rev. 2/18/2020 RS
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AnnMarle French

.  Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy Institute

Board member since 2018

Brian Hansen

Team Engineering, Project Manager

Board member since 2018.

Brian MIkol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018
I

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage

Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrlch

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations

Board member since 2018

Peter Telge

Owner, Stark Brewing Company ^
Board member since 2018

Roy Ballentine

Executive Chairman, Ballentine Partners, LLC

Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

Manchester School District Coordinator

Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

Captain - Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department
Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormick, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager

Board member since 2018

Rev. Gayle Murphy

Minister At Large

Board member since 2020

Michael McCormlck

Anthem- Chief of Staff & Sales Effectiveness Director,

Commercial Business Division, Manchester NH

Board member since 2020

Rev. 2/18/2020 RS
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Maria Devlin

Profi le

Tenured professional with extensive experience leading teams through building strategies and initiatives to drive high performance.
Adept at developing and carrying out a strategic vision, particularly those that require buy-in from inlemal and external stakeholders.
Expertise includes fundraising, change management, organizational leadership, budget management and improving team engagement

Ski l ls/Expertise

Experienced with Organizational
Budgeting including Revenue &

Expense Accountability

Organizational Agility & Complexity

Management
Teamwork and Team Building Skills

External Relationships & Partnerships
Customer Service Oriented

Face of the organization

Mission Focused

Goal Oriented, Leads by Example,
Visionary and Focused

P r o g r a m / P r 0 j e c t Management Experience

President & CEO

Families In Transition - New Horizons, Manchester NH 06/2020 • present

The President serves as Chief Executive Officer of Families In Transition-New Horizons and will have overaii strategic and operating
responsibility for staff, planning, development, management and successful implementation of programs and services, community
v.engagement and execution of strategic objectives and mission of the organization.

♦  Establishing a vision for community Impaa that is achieved through the efforts of a diverse team of high-performing leaders,
•  Responsible for overseeing the administration of programs to include financial performance and viability, ci^anization

mission and strategy, organizational operations, resource development and community Impact

Chief Executive Officer

American Red Cross of NH & VT, Concord, NH 03/2008-05/2020

Responsible for representing the American Red Cross in the community. Focus externally on core mission delivery, fundraising
and being the face of the Red Cross for the media, donors and their communities. Responsible for oversight and execution of a $5 million
operating budget.

Created overaii strategic planning and oversight for 3 major transitions in Northern New England. Oversight of execution of
staff and board Integration. ,
Lead organizational goals for service delivery, fundraising and external relations - for the past 4 years have met or exceeded
key performance indicators and revenue target of $1.2 - 2.5 million annually
Lead dual-state (NH/VT) operations with a team of 24 FTEs plus 1100 volunteers at multiple locations - In August 2019,
began merger with Red Cross of Maine to align staffing, processes, procedures for a new 3-slate region
Build lasting community partnerships with local corporations & groups to ensure mission delivery sudi as - Installing over
12,000 free smoke alarms in homes across the two states in 5 years
Ensure that volunteers, youth and young adults are engaged and retained - 93% of our volunteer workforce is engaged in
providing at least one hour of volunteer time to mission within the last fiscal year

interim Executive Director

Director of Public Affairs

Children's Alliance of New Hampshire, Concord, NH 01/2007-03/2008

The Children's Alliance (now New Futures Kids Count) advocates, educates and collaborates to Improve the health and wellness
of NH's residents. Collaborated with Board of Directors on organizational budget, dWelopment goals, policy initiatives and
organizational values and mission. Responsible for all operations: MR, P&L, Board Development, public policy advocacy initiatives
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Maria Devl in

•  Organized the Children's Advocacy Network - a diverse group of organizations and Individuals - dedicated to Improving the
life of children and families through legislative and public policy Initiatives, such as statewide kindergarten, statewide
children's health insurance, greater access to Children In Need of Services (CHINS) and maintaining access to Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits

•  Acting as the Interim Executive Director supported by 3 paid staff and a board of directors with 12 members
•  Stabilized fundraising, operations and personnel to ensure positive transition to new leadership

•  In partnership with the Annie E. Casey Foundation, created & released the 2007 Kids Count data book for New Hampshire
an annual report which tracks child welibeing. Data which Is used to enrich local and state-level discussions around policy
change.

Director of Annual Giving

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH 10/2003-01/2007

Responsible for Increasing annual giving from SNHU alumni, family and friends through personalized outreach,
donor relationship building, and targeted fundraising events.

•  Successful $50,000 asks to build stronger scholarship program for students at university, developed moves management
plans for donors to Increase donor engagement and support

•  Managed annual giving program Including direct mall, Telefund (connecting with alumni through current students to raise
funds via phone calling) leadership and class giving, faculty/staff giving, class gift and related events

•  Coordinated all stewardship activities for University President and VP, Development with average gifts over $15,000
•  Managed stewardship for all scholarship donors with average gift of over $1,000

Director of Development & Program Services

Make-A-Wlsh Foundation of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH 05/1996-10/2003

•  Successfully developed, implemented and executed a new volunteer management program to grow active volunteer base
from 100 to over 500 volunteers throughout the state

•  Managed & grew special events fundraising from 15 events annually to over 160 events grossing over $1 million annually
•  Managed communications and public relations - created newsletters, managed website, pitched wish stories to media -

Increasing the number of families reached to grant over 250 wishes each year.

Education

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH Springfield College, Manchester, NH (satellite)
Master of Science, Organizational Leadership Master of Science In Human Services, Community Psychology

University of Maine, Orono, ME
Bad^elor of Science, Child Development & Family Relations

Additional Certifications and Development
•  Certified Personal Trainer, National Academy of Sports Medicine, 2019

•  Adult First Aid/CPR/AED-2-year Certification, American Red Cross, 2018

•  Leadership of Non-ProfIt Organizations, Graduate Certificate, Southern New Hampshire University, 2008

HonorsSt Achievements

•  2015 Community Service Award Winner, Turkish Cultural Center of NH

•  2014 Excellence In Non-Profit Award Recipient from NH Business Review
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2013 Business Leader of the Year Pinnacle Award Winner, Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce

2013 Presenter at the International Disaster Management Exhibition in Istanbul, Turkey

2013 Recognized as one of the Top Women-Led Non-Profits by Business NH Magazine

Community
Women's Resource Group founding member, American Red Cross 3/19-present
Governor's Council on Diversity and Inclusion, 3/19-present

Waypoint NH {formerly known as Child & Family Servlcies of NH) Trustee, 1/2015-present
Volunteer New Hampshire, Board Member 2014-2016

NH Volunteer Organizations Active In Disaster (NH VOAD), Board Member 2014-2016
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Kristen McGuigan, LICSW

Kducatton ,

DOSTDN UNtrasiTY, 'IVNGSDOnO, MA SHPTEMOTa 2006-MAY 2009
Masters of Soda! Work
Rivrai Cdllicb, WAfliUA, NH SBPTOimai 2004-Mav 2006
ftichcior o/AftsIn Human Development
•  Minor in Sodal Work

NBWHAMMHIIlETEai(nc«.lNsn"nni,COMCOafi,NH SBPTraOKE2002-MAr2004.
Associates Degree In Baiiy ChOdhood Bducatlon
J.lccnSQS

• Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker in Massachuaetls and New Hampshire
Raperianco
PiMDJES IN Transition, Manchxstbr. NH

(Md and Famify Program Manager Octobbb ZOIO-pbbsbmt
•  Provide Individual therapy to chlldren/adolescense and lo'home femUy counseling
•  Supporting ̂unities whom struggle wtih substance use, trauma and homelessness
•  FacQJtiate thorapeutic play groups and parenting groups

Program Manager/Child and Famify Therapist OcroiaB2009.0croBBa2012
•  Provide trauma-Informed ttierapeiitic services to homaless chUdren and fomllles
«  Manage the trauma-Informed therapeuticpiosdiool and aRorschool program
•  Provide supervlsiOD to clinical staff and early educators whose responsibility levels vaty
«  Complete p^chosoclol aflsessmonts. develop treatment plans, and DECA/BBR5 assessment tools
•  Provide Individual dieropy, family therapy, parenting workshops, staff trainings, group therapy and crisis Intervention

PsvcuoTuisnArr ASSooATBSOPNoRni Riainnc, North rxadinc, MA |uly2013- Pbbsbnt

(licensed Independent CUntcal Social Worker
•  Provide Individual and family counseling to children, adolescences, and adults
•  Provide service to odoloaconces during the traolsltlon into ooUcgo and adulthood '
•  Offfarort and play therapy services to children agos 3-15 years old
•  Conduct psychoAerapy assessments and formulate treatment plans

Elus Memorial, Boston, MA Octobbb 2012* May 2014
QMcal SuperWsor /
•  Oversee clinical services for cblldron being offered In the agency, Including supervision to clinical staff and Interns
t  Pravldo therapeutic services to children and families enrolled In EUls's educational programming
•  Enroll and oversee services for children Biat have open cases wiA the Department of Children and Families
•  OBTcr in-bouse trainings and on-going support to ear^y childhood providers
•  Citato and Implement behavior roanagement strategies to ensure success for children within the programs

MooRB Center Servkbs Inc, Mancdbstis, NH Novembbb 2008- October 2009
Cose Manager, Qilldren Services
•  Assist fomilles with children diagnosed wllh developmentai disabilities end partldpoto in crisis Intervention planning
•  Oversee and manage child budget to provide services tiu-ough the In Home Support program
t  Attend children's Individual oducation plan (IBF) meetings and collaborate with school systems on behalf of children's

education

Easier Seals RisioBNTiALPAaLrry CO-Occubrino Unit, MANaicn-im. NH Septewdbr 200B- May 2009

Master Levd Clinical Intern

•  Participate In Individual and group therapy wltii adolescents with substance abuse diagnoses
•  Develop ciurlculuro for group therapy
•  Involvement tvltfa drug court and the New Hampshire court system
•  Partidpatod In training for Thorapeutic Crisis Intervention

Hicd Plain ELEMEtrrART, Andover, MA Sbptember 2007 -May 2008
Master Level Clinical Intern

•  Lodlndtvldual, group, and family therapy sessions employing a variety of techniques -
•  Provided cmottonal ond behavioral support to dients with autism, ADHD, OCD, PDD-NOS, GAS and depression
•  Served as liaison between staffand families on mental heuith Issuesand child development

Trnlnlnga
•  CerURod trainer in Suicide Prevention tiireugh NAMl (National Assodntlon of Mental IDnoss) 2010
•  Certified trainer of Dr. Brazolton Touchpolnts child dovclopment model (Harvard University) 2011
•  CertiDed Disaster Case Manager Supervisor (CathoUc Charities) Mard)20l4
•  Faculty member partldpating on a team with mental health professionals, to help Implement ttic Trauma-lnfbrmod

Early Education and Care Systems Breaktiirough Collaborative. Created end Implcmontcd trauma-lDFormed curriculum
training to early childhood educators. (Boston Public Health Commission, Boston MA) Auoust2013-Ssptembbr201.4
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Genevieve P. Martin

Related Work Experiencft
Pace career Academy, Ponbroke, NH
StudcTit Support Manager
March 2020- Current

• Facilitate group superviaion and support team meeting
weekly aad supervise Bachelor level social woito-

• Devdoped and fimllltated social emoUonal Icarniog
cuniculuin for sldll group

• Oversaw and managed the student body collateral
contacts and attended team meetiiigB

Maaaachnsetts Mentor- The Mentor Nctworit,
Lawrence, MA
Program Recruiter
December 2017- May 2019

• Qualify candidates to be therapeutic foster parents '
• Complete home evaluations and personnel checks
• Provide initial pro-service skdl dcvdopment to foster

parents

• Host field marketing end information events

Famiiy Centered Spe^alist
MtQ'2016-Decembcr20I7

• Provide skill building and family cantered, strength-
based interventions to achieve long term family '
preservation

• Assure documentation and records are complete,
confidential, submitted aceurately and timdy.

• Make referrals to services and provide aftercare
planmng for fomily.

Mcl^ean Hospftal, Bclmont, MA
Community Residence Counselor- Dialectical Behavior
Therapy Unit
February 2015- April 2016

• Miliou support and mimagemait to females ages 13-
20 years old with emerging traits of Bordcrtinc
Fcrsonality Disorder

• Lead evening groups such as; building mastciy,
contribution, and game night

• Teach the four main components of DBT

Orange Regional Medical Center, Middletown, NY
Psychiatric Techniciaru Behavioral Health Unit ■
January 2014- January 2015

• Pcifonn patient care tasks under the direction of a
Restored Professional Nurse

• Facilitatcdgroups/meetingsforpaticnis
• Be a support system for the patients

Related Intemship ETpeH^noi^
Manchester VA Medica] Center, Manchester, NH
Suicide Prevention Coordinator- Intemship
S^rtcmber 2019-May 2020

• ̂vide outreach support to Veterans who contacted
the Crisis Hotline

• Evaluate program progress and outcomes and utilizes
data to cofitinuously modify improve the program and
processes and prepares and maintains admiaistrarivc
records

• h^tor foe clinical care and assesses the compliance
wifo Suicide Prevention programming rexjuiremeots

Unfventty of New Hampshire, Sodal Work
Deptrtmenf, Durham, NH
Graduate Research Assisumt
Sqitcmbcr 2019-May 2020

• Exa^e a case oflfydrofiwddng and natural gas
tapping in NH regarding enviromncnla] justice

• Intc^cw community activist leaders on
enviroranaital c>mnge,

• Study the school to prison pipeline and the impact of
race on discipline rates.

Timberlane Middle School, Plalstow, NH
Stxident Assistance Counselor-Internship
September 2018-May 2019

• Med with students individually and in smaU groups
• Assi« in coordinating school wide activities end

district initiatives
• Attend and participate in substance misuse prevention

coalition meetings '

Certifications
•  Youth Mental Health First Aid Certified
•  CPR & First Aid Cdtified
•  Girls-On-Tbe Run, "NH Coach
•  Preventing & Managing Crisis Situations
•  Family Centered IVeatmeat Certified

Memberships
• National Association of Social Woikcn, NR Chapter
•  UNH Phi Alpha Sodal Work Donor Society

University Of New Hampshire
Master of Social Woric

Education

State University of New Yoric at Geneaoo
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology; Minor Sociology
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FIT/NHNH

K.ev Personnel for Dover Permanent Housing

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Maria Devlin President 180,000 0% -

Kristin McGuigan VP of Clinical Services 85,000 4% 3,400

Genevieve Martin Pro^yam Manager 52,000 15% 7,800
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Jeffrey A. Meyen
Comsnlsiioner

Christine L. Stnteniello
Dirtetor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271.9474 1-800-852-3345 Eit 9474

Fex: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 17. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide Permanent
Housing programs and Supportive Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program in an amount not to exceed $281,462, effective per the dates indicated in
the table below, upon Governor and Executive Council approval, through the completion dates Indicated
below. 100% Federal Funds. /

Vendor

Name

Project
Name

Vendor

n
Location

Effective

Date

Completion
Date

SFY

2020

SFY

2021

Total

Amount

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.
Permanent

Housing VI
157730-

B001 Manchester 9/1/19 8/31/20 $59,478 $11,896 $71,374

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.

Concord

Community
Permanent

Housing

157730-

8001

Merrimack

County 10/01/19 9/30/20 $78,995 $26,332 $105,327

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.

Dover

Permanent

Housing

157730-

8001
Strafford

County
11/1/19 10/31/20 $69,841 $34,920 $104,761

Total $208,314 $73,148 $281,462

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State
Fiscal Years (SFY) 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $208,314

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices T8D $73,148

Total $281,462

/
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date of a grant is based
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services.

Collectively, these vendors have a target to provide permanent housing and supportive services,
to a minimum of thirty-eight (38) participants from September 1, 2019 through October 31. 2020.

The attached agreements represent three (3) of thirty (30) total annual agreements, many of
which have renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located
throughout the state, to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's
Continuum of Care Program.

Using the "Housing First' model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services to maximize the participant's ability to
live more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing instability and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and
strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main, purposes:

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis. ^

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

•  Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
* compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent Or coordinated entry housing,
and/or outreach/supportive services will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry
in the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required
by law to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management
Information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs funded through these contracts.
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As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of these agreements, the parties have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests. Permanent Housing
and Supportive Services for individuals and families, who are experiencing housing instability and/or

' homelessness, may not be available in their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for
services placed upon the communities' local welfare authorities and other human-services providers. It
may also cause individuals and/or families to not have access to housing, and therefore, experience
homelessness.

t

Area served: City of Manchester and Merrimack and Stafford Counties; a minimum of thirty-eight
(38) individuals will be served collectively.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The De/xiriiiient of Health and Hnnian Services' Mission is to join comntunilies and families
in providing opportunities for ci(ueri« to achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Conlinumn Pf Care. FIT/NHNH. Inc.. Dover Permanent Housing. SS-2020-DHS-Q4-Pemia-l 1

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conndeniial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641.9441

1.6 Account Number

05-95^2^23010-7927

102-500731

1.7 Completion Dale

October 31, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$104,761

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White

Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of New Hampshire County of Hillsborough

On July 16. 2019 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Rl/TH A. SYREK, Notary Public
Uy CooniWan Eipirea Sflptamfaff 5,2023

1.1.3.2 - Name and Title of Notary or MStice of the Peace
✓

Ruth Syrek, Admin. Asst.. Notary Public

1. 14 /^tatc Agency Signt: Agi^ncy dignmufc . p. LiJ Nan>e.and Title of State Agency Signatory i

1. 16 Approval by the N^.'pcpartment of Administrmion, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: " Director, On:

1.17 Appros^l by the Auo^y General (Fonn, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: On:

1.18 Approval by^c Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the anached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become efTective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in ho event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the Slate shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. 7*he State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumsiances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with alfstatutes, laws, regulations,

and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include (he requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During (he term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Slates, the Coniractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Stales issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that ail personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
(his Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

of 4
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Agreement. This provision shell survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afier giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines thai the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Stale suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing (aw. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in (he attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO TH E STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither on agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Staie.'its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Stale, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or r^ulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out pQ the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,0()0per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Conlrecior shall furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block i .9, or his or her successor, a certincale(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OITicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiflcate(s) of
insurance for all rene>val(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The cenincaie(s) of
Insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each cenincate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting OfTicer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28)-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The'State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid; in a United-
States Post OfTice addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, cortstruction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated.herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions ApDlicable to Aii Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has" the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as a
subreciplent. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data Into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific Information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the Slate or Federal agencies- who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which Is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

FIT Dover Permanem Homing ExNbliA Conrtclor Inlttels
SFYI2020.2021 JulvIS 2019
SS-202O^HS-O4-PERMA.1 ̂ Page 1 ol 5 Data ■'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement and participate In the Coordinated Entry System (CES) for aii
projects funded by the CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing
Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule. 24
CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing Program that is targeted to serve eight (08)
homeless individuals in Stratford County with tenant-based, rental assistance and supportive
services, and which includes but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance. Including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status In accordance with 24.CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to Imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but Is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
only If the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider, a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records: or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence.
or sexual assault or stalking, which would Include threats from a third>party. such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, Including
emails, volcemalls, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual Income;

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of Income that the
pirogram participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Procram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The sen/ices and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F);and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housino Standards. The Contractor must retain docunientation of compliance wnth the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those'services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

FrT Dover Parm&nenl Mousing Exhibit A Contractor Inltlots n£>
SFYl2020-2021 Jylw ig 2019
SS-2020-eHS4>44'ERMA-U "" PegoSotS Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-4a4E-ADC4-C5BlC847F270

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements In 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Particioation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affinmativelv Furthering Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family \Arho applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subreclpient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by

-  the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to tre maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.
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3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. Thfe Contractor shall submit the following reports;

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPRI: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing In particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training In data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
• Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to the following:

5.1.1.1. httDS://www.hudexchanQe.info/DroQrams/coc/svstem-Derformance-measures/#ouidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR Part 578; Continuum of Care Program; and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may obsen/e performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFOA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFOA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number; NH0053L1T001808

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care. Permanent Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. November 1, 2019-October31, 2020. nottoexceed $104,761

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $21,264

1.2.8.2. Operating Cost: $81,042

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2.455

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $104,761

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $26,190

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in 'Standards for Audit of Goyemmentai
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions,' within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Proioct Costs: Payment Schedule: Revlaw bv the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term 'Project Costs' shall mean ail expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR.part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 576.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described In 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fuifiilment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
suificlent funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit 6. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be In accordance with the approved line Item not to exceed an
amount as specified In this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit 8.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments;

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.,
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinQsupportsinvoices@dhhs.nh.QOv

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the Slate may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, Inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 6. or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 16 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related Items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense EllQlbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall. utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. OoeratinQ Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (Including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area Is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.>

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. SuDDOrtive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs; yvv/^

FfT Dovor PwmariAni Kouting Exhibit B ContreciorInlttats t
SFY* 2020-2021
SS-2020-eHS-04-PERMA-11 P»g«4ofi0 Date ^



DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4-C5B1C847F270

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit B

5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness. including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, Including
classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants In employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been leamed or have l>een lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed Items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations atxDut the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment senrices. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described In 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who Is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operatirig
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be;

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; pr

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasino funds
only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housir>g codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described In 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization,, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1.' Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 576.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary .expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing Interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings; [

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibit 8.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business In carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings: and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing;

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organizdtion(s), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent (or all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable In relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking Into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities, if electricity, gas. and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service! facilities. If the structure
Is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 576.77.

5.6.1.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may t>e used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid vrilh grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not t>e given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the staicture and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water): however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management System

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund ai^unting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies swith 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PftOVISIQMS

Conlractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract,or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the.
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shad constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitt^ to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department far all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
OfHce of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on (he form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in theProposa)
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services; Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of (he price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits; All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollovring
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership; All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities; Compliance with Laws and Regulations; In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws v/hich shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to (he
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in confonnance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http7/www.ojp.usdoj7about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Coniroi and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title Vi of the Civli
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

t

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain heaith care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function{s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement thai specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHMS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Deftnitions:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance svith state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. - FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initiais
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as fodows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including svithout limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
minifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, In whole or in part. In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support tfie Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

imExhibit C-1 - Rftvisions/Exceptiona to Standard Contract Language Contractor Initials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. I.. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require cerlification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sutj-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the cerlification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions thai will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in ttie performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhlbil D - CertlflcAtfon regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
Identincation nuniber(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

'  1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for. such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug^free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the slte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

July 16. 2019

Vendor Name; FIT/NHNH, Inc.

fY]/7yyj D
Name/ Manrpftn Rf>;iiirpnarrlDate Name/ Maureen Beauregard

President

Exhibit 0 - Certlffcatlon regarding Drug Free Vendor IrtiUat)
Workplace Requirements
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Titb IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

,1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or emptoyee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub<ontractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

\

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

2019

Date Namb: Maureen Beauregird
Title: President

A an, ft ̂  ̂
Name: Maureen Beaureoard . ̂  '

Exhibit E - Certiflcallon Regarding Lobbytrtg Vendor tnitiaisi
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Mahers, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in. denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other rem^ies
available to the Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "Ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction t)e entered into, II shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certrfication Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineliglbility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by OHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExniWl F ~ Certification Rogardlng Debarmenl. Suspension Vendor initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by, a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certiHes to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Stale or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for othenArise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibilrty, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

July 16, 2019

Date

Title: President

Vendor Name; FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name:/Maureen Beauregard ^

4qOExhibit F - Certification Regarding Oet>arnient, Suspension Vendor initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37B9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan:

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
sen/ices or benents, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships vrith faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debanment.

01Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a Tinding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

i • By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2019
LA

Date Narfie; Maureen
Title: President

ffeauregar

ExttibitG
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part 0 • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contract^ for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the senrices are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcatd funds, and portions of facilities used for inpetient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Date

Title: President
Nam^: Maureen Beauregard '

ExhM H - CerttflcsUon Regarding Vendor initials.
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desicnated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AaareQation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ■

3/2014 Exhibil I Vendor Iniilele >
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Securitv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited.to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhioltl Vendorlniil8l«j
Healtn insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement i,,iw-le orvio

Page2of6 Date



DocuStgn Envelope ID; A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4-C5B1C847F270

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

<3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
I  I

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendrnent to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonvarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQations of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or iimitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and «
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

0. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security R'J'®-

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor tnltials /
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P*37), shall sun/ive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

'ii h u Walx/I [yL

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name of the Vender

Signature of Authoriz^dNRepresen|ative 'SigiTature of Authorized Rel)r^entative

Maureen Beauregard

^e of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Re

Fnf/rA'fi M.l'ty
Na Representative

President
Title of Au

Date

horized Representativelonzed Repr<

I fin
Title of Authorized Representative

July 16. 2019
Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 6 of 6

Vendor Inlti

Oate July 16, 2019



DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4-C5B1C847F270

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top fivie executives if:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name; FIT/NHNH. Inc.

July 16, 2019 \ f
Date NamelMaureen Beauregard

President

Cth.Exhibit J - Ceniflcation Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Inltiais.
Accouniabinty ArxJ Tranaparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 825360399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to U3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cu'CHHS/tiori)
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. 'Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations N^rhe^e persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
v^ich includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

flipvs. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor Initials.
DHHS Information
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the-State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security numt>er. personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometric records, etc.,
alone, or when comtiined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R: Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a.violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

VS. Last Update 1(V09/18 EjtfiibitK Contractor InlUa
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHMS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. (METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
. mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/16 ExhibilK Contfactor Inlilah
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Oisposltlon

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of. this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, vrithin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are .in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement t)etween the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if enervated and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Conndential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under- this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and passvt/ord) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5. Lost update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
VoiToiV Date July 16. 2019



DocuSign Envelope ID: A5162D29-97A8-484E-ADC4-C5B1C847F270

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI, PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSinformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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